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Ruiz, PD-1348-17

Was the search of substitute
teacher Ruiz’s cell-phone for
“up-skirt” photos of students
by the school principal
illegal—breach of computer
security—so as to implicate
Article 38.23’s exclusionary
rule?


Presenter
Presentation Notes
“The court of appeals misapplies the standard of review when examining article 38.23 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure.”

2. “The court of appeals’ opinion puts it in conflict with other courts of appeals, which have applied constitutional violation analysis to private individuals under article 38.23 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure.”

 3. “As Petitioner was the prevailing party at the Motion to Suppress, the court of appeals should have deferred to the trial court and presume it found a violation of law sufficient to trigger the Texas Exclusionary Rule.”

Two high school students accused Ruiz, a substitute teacher at the school, of using his cell phone to capture images from underneath female students’ skirts.  The administration summoned Ruiz to the office.  Ruiz admitted he “had a problem” and was fidgeting with his cell phone. Fearful that he might be deleting information from the phone, the school administrators asked Ruiz to put the phone on the principal’s desk. Ruiz ultimately admitted there were inappropriate images on his cell phone. Ruiz was fired and told the phone would be given to police.  Ruiz was allowed to retrieve several phone numbers stored on the phone, and the principal saw about twenty videos or images on the phone.  The principal gave the phone to police, who obtained a search warrant and retrieved several up-skirt images. Ruiz was charged with attempted production of sexual performance of a child.  He filed a motion to suppress, and the trial court granted it and made oral findings.  It concluded that the principal had conducted a warrantless search when he examined the phone without Ruiz’s consent and without exigent circumstances. The State appealed.

The court of appeals reversed.  It held that a private citizen cannot violate the search-and-seizure provisions of the state or federal constitution and that Ruiz asserted no state statutory violation such as theft or trespass.  It also held that as a private citizen taking possession of evidence with the intent to turn it over to police for a criminal investigation, the principal’s actions in seizing the phone did not implicate the Texas Exclusionary Rule, Tex. Code Crim. Proc. art. 38.23.  

Ruiz argues that a search of a cell phone can be illegal even when it is lawfully seized.  He cites Miles v. State, 241 S.W.3d 28, 39 (Tex. Crim. App. 2007), for the proposition that a private person can only do what a police officer would be authorized to do.  Also, he contends that this and other courts of appeals have applied a search-and-seizure analysis to the conduct of a private citizen in other cases, and that this case stands in opposition to those.  He argues that the principal violated Penal Code § 33.02, Breach of Computer Security, when he accessed Ruiz’s phone without his consent, and that the trial court made no finding that the principal’s intent was to facilitate a law enforcement seizure.   



Holder, PD-1269-16

1. Whether the State’s
petition for 20 days of
cell phone records set
forth “specific and
articulable facts” under
the Federal Stored
Communications Act.

2. Whatis the remedy for a
violation of the Stored
Communication’s Act?
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Presenter
Presentation Notes
"The Court of Appeals erred in holding the State's petition to obtain the Appellant's cell phone records set forth the "specific and articulable facts" required by federal law under 18 U.S.C. section 2703(d)."

A detective investigating Holder for murder petitioned the district court for a warrant to obtain Holder's cell-phone records for a designated twenty-day period. In it, he stated that he had reason to believe the records are relevant to an ongoing investigation because the phone was "used to communicate with unknown persons and obtaining the locations of the handset will allow investigators to identify if [Holder] was in the area at the time of the offense and will provide investigators with leads in this case." Holder moved to suppress the records, claiming that the petition violated 18 U.S.C. § 2703(d). Subsection (d) requires law enforcement to "offer specific and articulable facts" showing "reasonable grounds" that the records are "material and relevant." The trial court denied his motion.

The court of appeals affirmed. Citing the detective's statement relating to the investigation of Holder, the court held that the petition satisfied (d)'s pleading requirements. Further, though the offense date was not provided, the request was limited to a twenty-day period, which suggested the offense occurred within that time.

Holder points to a footnote in Ford v. State, which recently held that no warrant is needed to obtain historical cell-phone data. 477 S.W.3d 321 (Tex. Crim. App. 2015). The footnote observed that, even though compliance with 18 U.S.C. § 2703(d) was not an issue, the petition contained three pages of exhaustive factual information. Holder claims that the information supplied here is conclusory and thus does not provide "specific articulable facts."


Hankston, PD-0887-15

“Did the Court of Appeals err when it
'utilize[d] Fourth Amendment
precedent' in determining Art. 1
Section 9 of the Texas Constitution
was not violated when the State
obtained Appellant’s cell phone
records without a warrant in light of
Richardson v. State, 865 S.\W.2d 944
(Tex. Crim. App. 1993)?”



Presenter
Presentation Notes
Remanded from U.S. Supreme Court 7/03/18; Resubmitted 1/30/19

"Did the Court of Appeals err when it 'utilize[d] Fourth Amendment precedent' in determining Art. 1 Section 9 of the Texas Constitution was not violated when the State obtained Appellant's cell phone records without a warrant in light of Richardson v. State, 865 S.W.2d 944 (Tex. Crim. App. 1993)?"

Hankston was convicted of murder. The State offered business records from his cellular service provider to show his whereabouts and calls made and received. The trial court admitted them over Hankston's objection that obtaining them without a warrant violated both the federal and state constitutions.

The court of appeals rejected both claims. In addressing Hankston's state ground, it determined that there is no reason to interpret art. 1 § 9 any differently from the Fourth Amendment. The court found that the statement in Richardson v. State—"the use of a pen register may well constitute a 'search' under Article I, § 9 of the Texas Constitution"—was insufficient to show it provides more protection than the Fourth Amendment.

Hankston argues that Richardson provides enough support for his claim of greater protection because it broke with the Supreme Court's cases on third-party business records and held that a suspect does not invariably lack any reasonable expectation of privacy in the numbers he dials.



Foreman, PD-1090/91-18

1. Can a magistrate issuing a
warrant infer that an auto body
shop will have surveillance
eo]Luipment when no facts in the
aftidavit referred to such
equipment?

2. Does “plain view” justify the
warrantless seizure of the auto-
body-shop’s surveillance equipment
when police saw it recording live
footage while executing a search
warrant?



Presenter
Presentation Notes
1.  “The Fourteenth Court erred by holding that a magistrate could not infer from the warrant affidavit that an auto body shop would have a surveillance system. The Fourteenth Court held that before a magistrate could consider common knowledge, the matter must be ‘beyond dispute,’ a civil standard the Fourteenth Court grafted onto Fourth Amendment law.”
2. “The Fourteenth Court erred by holding that when officers see a surveillance system recording a location where a crime occurred two weeks prior, they do not have probable cause to seize the system’s hard drive unless they know what is on the hard drive prior to examining it.”
3.  “The Fourteenth Court erred by holding that the error required reversal, even under the standard for non-constitutional error, where the State’s remaining evidence was overwhelming and the defense non-existent.”

The victims in the case were in the process of conning Foreman out of a lot of money when he found out. Foreman and his cohorts tortured the two victims for several hours at his auto body shop. They escaped after tumbling, bound and gagged, from a moving vehicle in a volley of bullets. One of the victims identified the auto shop and picked Foreman out of a lineup. Police obtained a warrant for the shop to seize, among other things, surveillance equipment and video. During the search, police saw a t.v. monitor displaying live surveillance footage and seized the attached hard drive. After Foreman was charged with aggravated robbery and kidnapping, he filed a motion to suppress the surveillance video (recorded at the time of the offense) found on the drive. He pointed out that the warrant affidavit failed to explain the basis for the affiant’s belief that surveillance equipment would be found at the shop. The trial court denied the suppression motion. The surveillance video was admitted at trial, and Foreman was convicted.

On appeal, Foreman challenged the suppression ruling. A divided en banc court of appeals reversed on rehearing. It found no facts in the affidavit to show that a computer or surveillance equipment was involved in the crime and nothing from which to infer that such equipment would probably be found at the shop. It denied that it was a matter of common knowledge that businesses (particularly ones that store valuable, movable property) use surveillance systems, explaining that matters of common knowledge must be “so well known to the community as to be beyond dispute.” It also rejected the State’s plain-view argument that once officers saw a monitor displaying live surveillance footage of a crime scene, they had probable cause to believe a connected hard drive would contain evidence of a crime. The majority held that the incriminating character of the drive was not immediately apparent since officers had to examine it forensically before they knew whether it was associated with criminal activity. The majority also found the error harmful. A dissenting justice believed it was a fair inference that surveillance equipment would be found in the auto shop, noting that one only need look over head while in any store, restaurant or commercial property to recognize the ubiquitous nature of surveillance cameras. Another dissenter believed Foreman lacked standing and that any error was not harmful. 

The State contends that the inference that an auto shop would have surveillance equipment is similar to inferences upheld in other warrant cases. It also argues that “beyond dispute” is not the standard in criminal cases to determine whether something is common knowledge and does not belong in a probable-cause analysis. As to its plain-view argument, the State contends that the “immediately apparent” prong does not require actual knowledge, only probable cause. Barring a voluntary disclosure, police will never have sufficient information about the content of surveillance video, under the majority’s standard, to enable them to seize equipment under plain view or obtain a warrant. The State argues that, rather than viewing the evidence neutrally in its harm analysis, the court of appeals discounted the victims’ testimony (based on a view of their credibility that the jury clearly did not share) and improperly considered (in deciding guilt-phase harm) the trial court’s reliance on the video at the punishment phase.  
�


When a suspected
intoxicated driver is
unconscious, does “implied
consent” under the
mandatory blood-draw
statute satisfy the Fourth
Amendment’s consent
exception and thus justify a
warrantless blood-draw?


Presenter
Presentation Notes
“Is it unreasonable under the Fourth Amendment for an officer to rely on a driver’s implied consent to a blood draw when the driver was involved in an accident, there is probable cause to believe he is intoxicated, and where the driver’s own unconsciousness prevents the officer from effectively obtaining the driver’s actual consent.”

Ruiz was involved in an accident and fled the scene. When police found him nearby, he smelled of alcohol and was unconscious. He remained unresponsive at the hospital.  An officer, believing she had probable cause to arrest Ruiz for DWI, directed hospital staff to draw a sample of his blood. The trial court granted Ruiz’s motion to suppress. Although the judge found Ruiz was unconscious and had not revoked his implied consent to a blood draw, the judge believed Missouri v. McNeely, 133 S. Ct. 1552 (2013), required that the blood evidence be suppressed.

The State appealed. The court of appeals held that implied consent would not justify the unconscious blood draw.  Consent, the court said, must be free and voluntary and because Ruiz was unconscious, he did not consent.  The Court of Criminal Appeals initially granted review and remanded for the court of appeals to consider the State’s exigent circumstances argument. In its opinion on remand, the court of appeals rejected both the exigent circumstances argument and implied consent.  

The Court of Criminal Appeals again granted review of the unconscious blood draw issue.  Once again, the State argues that the statutory implied consent law is reasonable under the Fourth Amendment.  It points out that driving is a privilege, which the State can make subject to reasonable conditions. While noting a sharp divide among the states on the issue, the State contends that implied consent that has not been withdrawn can satisfy the Fourth Amendment’s consent exception.�
Mitchell v. Wisconsin, No. 18-6210 [Arg: 4.23.2019]��Issue(s): Whether a statute authorizing a blood draw from an unconscious motorist provides an exception to the Fourth Amendment warrant requirement.
�


Jury Issues







Eeny, meeny,

Garcia, PD-0035-18

“Is the constitutional
harm standard the
proper test when there
was a mere delay in
the election, versus no
election, and the jury is
charged on a specific
incident?”


Presenter
Presentation Notes
2.  “How specific must the factual rendition of a single incident in the jury charge be to serve the purposes the election requirement?”


Garcia was charged with one act of aggravated sexual assault of his step-daughter. At trial, the State introduced evidence of two such assaults, one that occurred earlier in a bathroom and another that happened in August 1987 in a bedroom.  The trial court erroneously denied the defense request (at the close of the State’s case-in-chief) to have the State elect which incident it was relying upon for conviction.  But the judge indicated that the State would have to elect at the close of all the evidence.  The jury charge’s application paragraph limited the jury to convicting Garcia for an aggravated sexual assault “inside a bathroom.” Although the application paragraph tracked the indictment date—“on or about August 16, 1987,” which was either the date of the bedroom incident or at least closer to it than the bathroom incident, the charge instructed the jury that the State was not bound by the “on or about” date. 

On appeal, Garcia argued he was harmed by the State’s late election of incidents. The court of appeals held that there was no meaningful distinction in this case between a late election and no election.  By submitting an “on or about” date in the jury charge corresponding to the bedroom incident and specifying the bathroom incident, the charge conflated the two incidents.  The court of appeals performed a constitutional harm analysis and reversed.

The State agrees it should have elected at the close of its case-in-chief, but argues there still was an election in this case. The State contends that the charge’s application paragraph narrowed the jury’s consideration to a characteristic that described only one incident (the bathroom incident) and that this alleviated rather than exacerbated harm from the late election.  The State also contends that a constitutional harm analysis should not apply to late election because many of the purposes for requiring an election were served by telling the jury in the charge to convict only for one specific offense.  The only remaining purpose—notice—warrants a non-constitutional harm standard. In addition, the defense was consistent for all incidents.  The State notes the absence of any established procedures for how to effectuate an election, and questions what would have been different at trial had the State elected earlier.



1. Is an instruction on
“ ” a
comment on the
weight of the
evidence?

2. Ifa” ?
Instruction is proper,
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Beltran De La Torre, instruction

DD-0561-18 authorized?



Presenter
Presentation Notes
“The Court of Appeals erred in holding the trial court did not improperly comment on the evidence by providing a jury instruction on ‘joint possession’ that added to the statutory definition of ‘possession.’”

2. “The Court of Appeals erred in alternatively holding it was not error to refuse Appellant’s requested jury instruction on ‘mere presence’ while holding the jury instruction on ‘joint possession’ was appropriate.”
 
Beltran de la Torre was indicted for possession of cocaine that police found on the center console of his car. Beltran de la Torre had been in the driver’s seat at the time, and there were also two female passengers. All three occupants had dilated pupils, suggesting cocaine use. At trial, Beltran de la Torre testified that the cocaine was not his and that he did not even know it was in the car. He said three others had occupied the car that day. At the charge conference, the trial court denied the defense’s request for an instruction that mere presence at the scene was insufficient to constitute knowing possession. The charge did include the non-statutory instruction “Two or more people can possess the same controlled substance at the same time.” The jury convicted Beltran de la Torre, and he appealed both jury charge issues.

The court of appeals held that because the “mere presence” instruction was not a statutory defense and merely negated an element of the State’s case, it was not error to refuse the defense instruction. While acknowledging that the joint possession instruction was also not statutory, the court of appeals concluded that joint possession had a particular legal meaning and that “jurors should not be left to their own devices to decide whether ‘possession’ includes ‘joint possession’ when the facts at trial raise the question.”

Beltran de la Torre argues that the joint possession instruction is an impermissible comment on the evidence because, even if a correct statement of law, it draws attention to the State’s theory while undermining the defense. He contends that the court of appeals’ holdings are in conflict and that if the joint possession instruct was proper, the mere presence instruction was likewise proper.
�


Fbikam, PD-1199-18

“Whether a defendant’s
failure to admit the exact
manner and means of an
assault as set forth in a
charging instrument is a
sufficient basis to deny a
jury charge on self-
defense.”

But I swear
in selijderen

1 was

s.ie.b. .-.- -1 | -
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Presenter
Presentation Notes
“Whether a defendant’s failure to admit the exact manner and means of an assault as set forth in a charging instrument is a sufficient basis to deny a jury charge on self-defense.”

Ebikam was charged with assaulting Ebo, a woman he was dating, by striking her with his hand. Their conflict arose when Ebo called Ebikam and another woman answered his phone. Ebo went to Ebikam’s apartment. According to Ebo, Ebikam hit her several times. According to Ebikam, Ebo was pushing her way into his apartment and he was scared of what she was going to do to him and the woman inside. He admitted that he attempted to close the door on Ebo to prevent her from coming in. He denied striking or hitting her. At the charge conference, Ebikam asked for a self-defense instruction. The trial court denied it, and Ebikam was convicted.  

On appeal, Ebikam argued it was error to deny his self-defense instruction. The court of appeals affirmed and held that, to warrant a charge on self-defense, Ebikam had to admit to striking Ebo with his hand as alleged in the information.

Ebikam argues that as long as there is some evidence on each element of the defense, a defendant is not required either to concede to the State’s version of events or admit to every element as alleged in the charging instrument. He contends he sufficiently admitted to the assaultive conduct and that the court of appeals’s strict requirement that he admit to the manner and means conflicts with other self-defense cases in the courts of appeals and Court of Criminal Appeals.     



Jordan, PD-0899-18

What quantum and
qguality of evidence
Is needed to be
entitled to a

{

’)

defensive

instruction?



Presenter
Presentation Notes
“What quantum of evidence must the accused present to avail himself of self-defense/defense of others when the alleged victim was not a primary threat?”

2. “Does a Defendant’s intent to exercise self-defense/defense of others transfer to other assailants when the Defendant is only confronted with the fists of the primary threat?”

Jordan and his friend, Cody Bryan, arrived at a restaurant at which Summer Varley, Jordan’s ex-girlfriend, worked.  They were met at the door by Jordan Royal, a large friend of Varley’s, who told Jordan not to speak to Varley.  Jordan and Bryan got a table away from where Varley, Royal, and three others sat.  Royal and one of the others approached them while they waited on their order and spoke to them aggressively.  After Varley’s group paid and left, Jordan and Bryan decided to cancel their orders and leave after the group had enough time to disperse. The group was still outside when they exited, however, and their hollering prompted Jordan and Bryan to walk speedily to Bryan’s car. Royal caught up to them and knocked Bryan unconscious with one punch. Jordan tried to run to the car but was hooked and spun around by Royal, who got on top of him. Varley was trying to pull Royal off when she was shot by Jordan.  Another shot pierced Royal’s femoral artery.  Jordan testified that he believed he was getting mobbed and, based on what happened to Bryan, he was justified in pulling his pistol from his pocket and firing even though he could not see to aim.  After everyone fled, Jordan returned to the restaurant, put his pistol down on the counter, and waited for police.

Jordan was tried for aggravated assault against Royal and deadly conduct by discharging a firearm against Varley and Austin Crumpton, a member of the group who was not shot.  The jury was instructed on self-defense on both charges based on Royal’s use of unlawful deadly force.  The jury hung on aggravated assault but convicted Jordan of deadly conduct.

Jordan raised numerous complaints about the self-defense instruction.  First, it included a duty to retreat.  Second, it did not explicitly tell the jury to acquit if it had a reasonable doubt that the State disproved self-defense.  Third, it failed to include a presumption of reasonableness based on the victim’s commission or attempted commission of murder. Fourth, it failed to include a “multiple assailant” instruction. The court of appeals overruled all of them by holding Jordan was not entitled to an instruction on self-defense with regard to deadly conduct because his theory of entitlement was based exclusively on Royal’s conduct; there was no evidence that the alleged victims used deadly force against Jordan.  As Jordan was not entitled to an instruction on self-defense, any infirmities were harmless.
Jordan’s questions presented are based on the “multiple assailants” theory of justification. Although he disputes the lower court’s contention that no evidence showed any threat from Varley or Crumpton, he argues that it should not matter because they were part of a group 1) that pursued Jordan and Bryan, and 2) a member of which caused Bryan serious bodily injury and was attacking Jordan.  If a jury could conclude that his perception of a mob and Royal’s threat to him were reasonable, it should have been permitted to transfer that reasonableness to his deadly conduct toward other members of the group.
�
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Williams, PD-1199-17

|s drug-test-evidence admissible
without testimony of the chemist
who performed the testing when
the certificate of analysis failed to
provide the name of the affiant
who personally conducted the
testing?



Presenter
Presentation Notes
“The court of appeals erred in affirming the trial court’s allowing evidence of a drug test without testimony of the chemist who performed the testing.”

Williams was charged with manslaughter and fleeing the scene of an accident. He admitted being intoxicated on methamphetamine and cocaine at the time and provided a blood sample. Two different labs conducted testing. The State called one lab’s witness to testify that marijuana and Soma were detected in Williams’s blood. Results from the other lab (showing the presence of amphetamine, methamphetamine, and cocaine metabolite) were admitted through a certificate of analysis report. Under Tex. Code Crim. Proc. art. 38.41, a defendant can prevent admission of a certificate of analysis and insist on the analyst’s testimony by objecting at least 10 days before trial. Williams did not do so. He argued at trial, however, that because the certificate of analysis did not state that the affiant had personally conducted the testing, it did not substantially comply with Article 38.41, and thus he did not have to object pretrial. The certificate of analysis was admitted at trial, however, and he was convicted of both offenses.

The court of appeals observed that the sample certificate of analysis in Article 38.41, § 5 includes a statement that the affiant “conducted the following tests or procedures” but that there is no express requirement the affiant be the analyst who conducted the testing. It held that the certificate substantially complied with the requirements of Article 38.41 and that Williams failed to preserve his confrontation objection by not objecting timely.

Williams argues that a certificate of analysis that is not sworn to by the analyst who performed the testing “calls into question the reliability and competency of the drug testing” and should not have the effect of forfeiting his confrontation rights.
�


Carsner, PD-0/23-18

. Is evidence forgotten by a

defendant unknown for
purposes of the newly
discovered evidence rule?

. Can a defendant who fails to
recall evidence once known but
since forgotten exercise due
diligence for purposes of newly
discovered evidence rule?



Presenter
Presentation Notes
“Whether, as a matter of law, evidence that has been forgotten by a defendant is unknown, for purposes of the newly-discovered-evidence rule, only if the defendant forgot about it because of a physical or mental condition, such as amnesia or repression, that was caused by a traumatic event, debilitating injury, or disease, the existence of which can be confirmed by science or medicine.”

2. “Whether, as a matter of law, a defendant who fails to recall evidence, once known but since forgotten, has not, for purposes of the newly discovered evidence rule, exercised diligence to discover or obtain such evidence.”

Carsner was convicted of capital murder for killing her elderly mother and stepfather. At trial, she claimed she shot them to protect her daughter because they were granted unsupervised visitation with her after they initiated a complaint to CPS. Carsner explained that her stepfather sexually abused her as a child and that her mother knew about it and did not stop it. In response to this strategy, the State argued that Carsner’s allegation was fabricated because she made it for the first time after the CPS complaint.

After Carsner was sentenced, her ex-boyfriend from high school, Henry O’Hara, read about her case in the paper; he was surprised by the report that Carsner had been unable to refute the State’s fabrication claim because she had in fact disclosed the abuse to him thirty years earlier.  O’Hara met with Carsner, who then filed a motion for new trial alleging that her statement to O’Hara is newly discovered evidence that could corroborate her testimony and rebut the State’s fabrication claim. At the hearing, Carsner’s counsel stated that before trial she knew the State would claim fabrication and therefore told Carsner that she needed to identify anyone whom she may have told about the abuse.  Carsner had said she did not tell anyone. The trial court ultimately denied her motion.  Though it found that Carsner’s thirty-year-old outcry to O’Hara was newly discovered due to memory loss, it concluded that it was cumulative of other evidence at trial.

The court of appeals upheld the trial court’s ruling.  It held that Carsner’s statement to O’Hara is not newly discovered evidence not known or unavailable to her at trial and that she failed to exercise due diligence to discover and obtain it. The court determined that it is not newly discovered because Carsner is the one who made the outcry. This, the court stated, is analogous to cases involving the discovery of an alibi witness.  Purported newly discovered alibi witnesses are not deemed previously unavailable because the defendant should have known of the witness at the time of the offense. The court rejected Carsner’s justification that the statement had been forgotten.  The abuse was known to her before trial, and she did not argue she suffered amnesia or a physical or psychological ailment that prevented her from recalling it.  Again, the court observed that, like the alibi witness scenario, such witnesses are not newly discovered when the witness first comes forward after trial. Finally, it held she did not exercise due diligence because she failed to recall the information that was within her personal knowledge.

Carsner argues that the court of appeals improperly characterized the issues as one of law when they are fact issues. In the alibi scenario, the issue comes down to the credibility of the defendant as to whether the defendant knew it all along. Further, as a matter of logic, evidence that is forgotten is not known.  Defendants “are not responsible for a failure to produce such evidence as was both actually unknown to, and actually undiscovered by, them in spite [of] reasonably diligent investigative efforts.”  Carsner asserts that it is the fact of the memory loss, not the reason that is important.  As for the due diligence holding, the court’s rationale lies on the same erroneous presumption that evidence once known can never really be forgotten.  Most importantly, as a fact issue, the court of appeals should have deferred to the trial court’s newly discovered finding, which was based on Carsner’s credibility.


o
Heath, PD-0012-19

L. 1s a pretrial emai . WHEN SOMEONE REPLIES TO
" EMAILASKING FOR INFORMATION

stating, “Can | get
discovery on this client, 2g
with no designation of
documents sufficient to
invoke the Morton Act
(Art. 39.14(a))?

Y

2. Does the
relinquishment of the
evidence at issue estop
the State from winning
on preservation?

RIGINAL EMAIL



Presenter
Presentation Notes
“Did the court of appeals err by reversing the trial court’s discovery sanction order under a theory not raised by the State?”

2. “Was Appellee’s discovery request sufficient under the Michael Morton Act?”

3. “Is the State estopped to challenge the sufficiency of Appellee’s discovery request because it produced discovery in response to the request?”

After Heath was indicted, defense counsel e-mailed a request to the prosecutor that stated, in its entirety, “Can I get discovery on this client? Cause #2017-241-C2.” The prosecutor discovered the existence of a 911 call 11 days before trial, and defense counsel received it five days later. He filed a motion to exclude the recording for violating Tex. Code Crim. Proc. art. 39.14(a) (the Michael Morton Act), which was granted.��The State appealed, arguing that the trial court’s sanction was an abuse of discretion.  The court of appeals did not address those arguments.  Instead, it held that defense counsel’s e-mail was not an adequate request under Article 39.14 because it neither mentioned the Act nor designated what items he sought.�
Heath makes three arguments.  First, a court of appeals may not supply an argument that was not raised by the losing party at a motion to suppress.  Second, if it could, his request for discovery was sufficient because there is only one discovery statute in Texas and forcing the defendant to designate discoverable items it does not know about would frustrate the purpose of Article 39.14.  Third, the State had no apparent problem understanding his request because it responded by (eventually) producing the 911 call; it should therefore be estopped from prevailing on that theory.
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My army is ready, we attack at
nightfall

Fisk, PD-1360-17

Under the habitual
sex-offender
enhancement
provision, TEX. PENAL
CoDE §
12.42(c)(2)(B)(v),

how should

(o

” for out-of-
state convictions be
determined?



Presenter
Presentation Notes
“The current test for determining whether an out-of-state offense is substantially similar to an enumerated Texas offense is too broad. Accordingly, this Court should disavow that test and replace it with one that only compares the elements of the respective offenses.”

2. “Even if not disavowed, the court of appeals misapplied the current test when it concluded that the military’s former sodomy-with-a-child statute is not substantially similar to Texas’s sexual-assault statute.”
 
Fisk was convicted of three counts of indecency with a child by contact.  At punishment, the State argued for mandatory life sentences under Texas’s “two-strikes policy” for repeat sex offenders (Penal Code § 12.42(c)(2)) based on Fisk’s prior court-martial conviction for sodomy.  Under § 12.42(c)(2)(B)(v), an out-of-state conviction can be used for enhancement if it is “substantially similar” to certain sex offenses in Texas, including sexual assault.  The trial court found that Fisk’s sodomy conviction qualified and imposed three life sentences.

 The court of appeals reversed. It followed the two-prong analysis in Prudholm v. State, 333 S.W.3d 590, 594 (Tex. Crim. App. 2011), and Anderson v. State, 394 S.W.3d 531, 535 (Tex. Crim. App. 2013), for determining if the offenses were “substantially similar.”  It recognized that under Prudholm, an out-of-state offense cannot have “markedly” broader elements than Texas’s statute.  The military justice statute criminalized bestiality and sodomy (including certain forms of consensual sex between adults) and provided an enhanced penalty if the victim was under 16.  The court of appeals held this was “distinctly different conduct” than the elements of sexual assault in Texas. As for the second prong, although the statutes had similar punishment ranges, they did not protect the same individual and public interests.  The military justice statute was focused on unnatural nonprocreative sexual activity, whereas Texas’s sexual assault statute was designed to protect against the physical and psychological trauma of rape.

The State argues that the test for “substantial similarity” under Prudholm and Anderson goes beyond the plain language of § 12.42(c)(2)(B)(v), which only requires a comparison of elements. It is problematic to consider whether the two statutes aim to protect the same interests or have similar punishments because these legitimately vary, depending on the jurisdiction, and can change drastically over time. The court of appeals also erred to consider the entire sodomy statute rather than the specific offense Fisk was convicted of: sodomy “with a child under the age of 16 years.” Comparing the narrower offense would have been consistent with Prudholm and demonstrate that the military justice offense is more circumscribed—not broader.  The State contends that how another jurisdiction structures its statutes (whether it prohibits sexual assaults against children in two different statutes or one) should not determine whether a conviction is available for the two-strikes enhancement.
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§ 22.01(b)(2)(A) always
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because it can be, and
often is, used as a
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“Is a prior conviction for family violence under Tex. Penal Code § 22.01(b)(2)(A) always a guilt issue simply because it can be, and often is, used as a jurisdictional element?”

Holoman was indicted for felony assault by impeding a household member’s breath or circulation. Assaulting a household member can also be a felony if the defendant has a prior family-violence conviction, which Holoman had. Rather than charging Holoman with this alternate felony, the State set out the prior in an enhancement notice. In the jury charge, the trial court submitted misdemeanor assault (plus the victim’s status as a family/household member) as a lesser-included offense, and the jury convicted on this lesser.  Then for the first time at punishment, the State offered the family-violence prior, which the judge found true, returning the punishment range to a third-degree felony. Holoman was then sentenced as a habitual offender on proof of two other prior sequential felonies.

On appeal, Holoman argued that the family-violence prior was an element of third-degree felony assault that had to be proven at the guilt phase. The court of appeals agreed and held that the jury had only convicted Holoman of misdemeanor assault and thus his 25-year prison sentence was illegal.

The State contends that the prior is ordinarily a guilt issue when the State charges recidivist family-violence assault. Tex. Code of Crim. Proc. Article 36.01 authorizes treating prior offenses as elements of the offense unless they are “alleged for enhancement only” and are “not jurisdictional.” Here, the prior met both these conditions because the assault by impeding was what vested jurisdiction in the district court.  The State contends that, contrary to the court of appeals’s holding, a prior offense does not immutably belong to one phase of trial or the other. Instead, as Article 36.01 indicates, it should depend on how it is used in the case.
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Franklin, PD-0787-18

1. Isa Miller v.
Alabama claim

forfeitable?

2. 1s the age of

minority an affirmative
defense?

3. If the defendant

bears the burden, was
Franklin denied the
opportunity here?
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Presentation Notes
1. “The Court of Appeals erred in ruling that appellant’s Miller v. Alabama claim was forfeited by inaction.”

2. “The Court of Appeals erred by ruling the age of the defendant at the time of the offense is an affirmative defense for which the defendant bears the burden of proof.”

3. “Even if defendants bear the burden to prove when they were born, the Court of Appeals erred in affirming the instant judgment because the trial court never secured an express waiver from appellant, admission from appellant, or finding of fact that appellant was indeed over the age of eighteen [18] on October 22, 2014.”


Franklin was convicted of capital murder and sentenced to life without parole. He argued on appeal that his sentence was cruel and unusual under Miller v. Alabama, 567 U.S. 460 (2012), and contrary to Tex. Penal Code § 12.31(a)(1) because the State offered no evidence he was at least 18 on the date of the offense. Relying on its own precedent, the court of appeals held that minority is an affirmative defense. See Garza v. State, 453 S.W.3d 548, 555 (Tex. App.—San Antonio 2014). After noting that the record is devoid of evidence of Franklin’s birth date and that he did not object even when the State initially sought the death penalty, the court held that Franklin could not complain on appeal because he failed to raise the issue at trial.

Franklin makes three related arguments. First, his complaint should have been addressed because neither Miller claims nor sufficiency claims are forfeited by inaction. He adds that a hearing should have been ordered because the silent record might mean that the State waived the death penalty because he was a minor at the time of the offense. Second, he says that minority is not an affirmative defense; rather, majority is a precondition for increased punishment that should be proven by the State beyond a reasonable doubt. It is not designated as an affirmative defense nor could it be reasonably treated as one given the State is as or more likely to have access to that information as a defendant. Third, if he did bear a burden at trial, the trial court prevented him from satisfying the burden or obtaining a finding by “prematurely” releasing the jury.



1. When no timely motion to

bar prosecution was filed per
Article 4.18, is a jurisdictional
attack on a certification order
barred?

2. Does Manuel v. State bar a
jurisdictional attack when it
could have been made for the
first time on appeal from an
order deferring adjudication?

Bell, PD-1383-18


Presenter
Presentation Notes
1.  “May appellant mount a jurisdictional attack on the certification order without having filed a timely motion in bar of prosecution as required by Texas Code of Criminal Procedure Article 4.18?”

2.  “Does Manuel v. State and its progeny apply to Texas Code of Criminal Procedure Article 44.47 to procedurally default appellant from raising claims upon revocation that he could have pursued on appeal from the order of deferred adjudication?”

The State accused 16-year-old Bell of engaging in delinquent conduct by committing aggravated robbery. The juvenile court waived its jurisdiction over Bell and transferred his case to criminal district court. There, he pleaded guilty and was placed on deferred. He did not appeal at that time. He violated his probation, and the district court found him guilty and sentenced him to 20 years.

He appealed and argued that the juvenile court’s transfer order lacked the specific findings required under Moon v. State, 451 S.W.3d 28 (Tex. Crim. App. 2014), and thus was insufficient to transfer the proceedings.  The State argued that the court of appeals lacked jurisdiction to reach the Moon claim because (1) Bell did not file a motion in bar of prosecution, required under Code of Criminal Procedure Art. 4.18, before claiming that the juvenile court did not waive jurisdiction; and (2) Bell failed to challenge the transfer order in an appeal immediately after being placed on deferred. The court of appeals rejected the State’s arguments, vacated the conviction, and remanded to the juvenile court for a new transfer hearing.
As to the first issue, it held that Art. 4.18(g) expressly exempts claims of defects in the discretionary transfer proceedings from the requirement of filing a motion in bar and that Art. 4.18 is further inapplicable here because the juvenile court did waive jurisdiction, it just abused its discretion in doing so (because of inadequate findings). As for the second issue, the court of appeals acknowledged that, under Manuel v. State, 994 S.W.2d 658 (Tex. Crim. App. 1999), issues relating to the original plea proceeding may be raised only in appeals taken when deferred is first imposed. Nevertheless, it held that this “background rule” did not govern because Article 44.47, which applies to appeals of juvenile transfer orders, specifically permitted such appeals either in an appeal of a conviction or a deferred adjudication order.    

The State contends that Art. 4.18 requires a motion in bar because, contrary to the court of appeals’s finding, Bell alleged more than a mere defect in the transfer proceedings; he alleged the order failed to confer jurisdiction on the criminal court.  The State also argues that to the extent that Bell raised a non-jurisdictional defect claim, Manuel and its progeny bar such a claim.  It is not simply a “background rule” that could be made inapplicable by a specific statute. Under Family Code § 54.02(h), once certified as an adult, Bell is subject to all the procedures applicable to adults—and that includes the rule, arising out of Art. 42.12 and Rule of Appellate Procedure 26.2(a)(1), that he cannot wait until after revocation to appeal the decision that placed him on community supervision.
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Loch, PD-0894-18

1. Is the failure to admonish about
immigration consequences harmful when the
defendant was already deportable, or knew
he was deportable, at the time of his guilty
plea due to prior convictions?

2. Was the failure to admonish about
immigration consequences harmful when
Appellant was already deportable, the
evidence of guilt was overwhelming, and he
was morally motivated to plead guilty?


Presenter
Presentation Notes
“Is the failure to admonish about immigration consequences under Tex. Code Crim. Proc. art. 26.13(a)(4) harmful when the defendant was already deportable at the time of his guilty plea due to prior convictions?”

2. “Is the failure to admonish about immigration consequences under Tex. Code Crim. Proc. art. 26.13(a)(4) harmful when the defendant knew he was already deportable at the time of his guilty plea due to prior convictions?”

3. “Was the failure to admonish about immigration consequences under Tex. Code Crim. Proc. art. 26.13(a)(4) harmful when Appellant was already deportable, the evidence of guilt was overwhelming, and he was morally motivated to plead guilty?”

Loch, a citizen of Cambodia, was not admonished according to Tex. Code Crim. Proc. art. 26.13(a)(4) about possible deportation consequences when he pleaded guilty to murder. During the proceedings, he stipulated to having six prior convictions.

On appeal, Appellant complained about the failure to admonish under Article 26.13(a)(4). The court of appeals held it was reversible error. It concluded that, even though evidence of guilt is overwhelming, there is no evidence that he was aware of deportation consequences at the time of his plea.

The State contends the court of appeals erred to find harm because immigration consequences were immaterial to his plea. Most of Loch’s prior convictions made him deportable before he entered his plea. Indeed, documents showed that Loch had an ICE detainer placed on him when previously imprisoned in Florida.  Because he had no lawful right to be in the U.S., he cannot show his guilty plea might lead to deportation.  And, even if Loch subjectively believed he was not already deportable, he still did not suffer harm. A non-citizen defendant’s false belief about immigration status does not implicate a “substantial right” as required by Rule 44.2(b).  If it could have had no impact on his decision then, in hindsight for purposes of a harm assessment, it cannot rationally be said that it would have had an impact. Finally, harm cannot be shown because the evidence is overwhelming, Loch was motived by a sense of duty and religion to plead, and he was already deportable, his plea would have been the same had he been properly admonished.
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1. Is “possession with
intent to deliver” a
predicate offense for
engaging in organized
criminal activity (EOCA)?

2. If not, is reformation
a remedy?

Parker, PD-0474-17
Hughitt, PD-0275/76-18
Walker, PD-0399-17
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Presentation Notes
Parker
“Is ‘possession with intent to deliver’ a predicate offense for engaging in organized criminal activity because it falls within ‘unlawful manufacture, delivery . . . of a controlled substance’ which is one of EOCA’s enumerated predicate offenses?”

 2. "Can an EOCA conviction predicated on an offense that is not a predicate be reformed to that necessarily subsumed offense?“

Parker pleaded open to engaging in organized criminal activity (EOCA) by possessing a controlled substance with intent to deliver. On appeal, he argued that possession with intent to deliver was not one of the enumerated predicate offenses for EOCA and thus he should be acquitted.  Tex. Penal Code § 71.02(a).

The court of appeals agreed, holding that the only qualifying predicate offense for possession cases are those involving “forgery, fraud, misrepresentation, or deception.” The court of appeals acquitted Parker of EOCA and held that the conviction could not be reformed to possession with intent to deliver under Thornton v. State, 425 S.W.3d 289 (Tex. Crim. App. 2014).

The State argues that “unlawful manufacture, delivery . . . of a controlled substance” in the list of EOCA predicate offenses refers to the umbrella offense of manufacture and delivery. The State contends that the statute should be interpreted based on the objective meaning of the text at the time of its enactment.  At that time, there was a single comprehensive offense entitled “Unlawful Manufacture or Delivery of Controlled Substances,” that included (as it does today) possession with intent to deliver.  The State also argues that even if possession with intent to deliver is not a proper predicate, the court of appeals should have reformed the conviction to that offense.  Parker’s guilty plea is an admission to all the elements of EOCA by possession with intent to deliver, and hence it is sufficient to support a conviction for that alleged predicate offense.

Hughitt

“Is possession with intent to deliver a predicate offense for engaging in organized criminal activity because it falls within ‘unlawful manufacture, delivery . . . of a controlled substance’ which is one of EOCA’s enumerated predicate offenses?”

Hughitt was charged with engaging in organized criminal activity (EOCA) by possessing a controlled substance with intent to deliver. Hughitt filed motions to quash and for directed verdict in which she argued that possession with intent to deliver was not one of the enumerated predicate offenses for EOCA. Tex. Penal Code § 71.02(a). The trial court denied both motions.

On appeal, the court of appeals held that the trial court should have granted the motion to quash because possession with intent to deliver is not a predicate offense. It rejected the State’s argument that the word “delivery” in the list of predicates was a reference to the Health & Safety Code offenses for manufacture and delivery of controlled substances—which include possession with intent to deliver as one manner or means. The court of appeals vacated the conviction and dismissed the indictment.

The State argues that “unlawful manufacture, delivery . . . of a controlled substance” in the list of EOCA predicate offenses refers to the umbrella offense of manufacture and delivery —Tex. Health & Safety Code § 481.112, in this case.  The State contends that the statute should be interpreted based on the objective meaning of the text at the time of its enactment.  At that time there was a single comprehensive offense entitled “Unlawful Manufacture or Delivery of Controlled Substances,” that included (as it does today) possession with intent to deliver.  The State also argues that a Court of Criminal Appeals case decided not long after EOCA’s enactment, Nichols v. State, 653 S.W.2d 768, 771 (Tex. Crim. App. 1981), supports its reading of the statute. 

Walker

“Can a conviction for a charged, but nonexistent, offense be reformed to a subsumed and proven offense that does exist?”
The State indicted Walker for engaging in organized criminal activity (EOCA) to possess a controlled substance with intent to deliver, but that is not a predicate offense for EOCA.  The court of appeals was the first to notice the error and asked for supplemental briefing.  Walker argued the evidence was insufficient to convict him of EOCA, but the court of appeals rejected his specific arguments, finding there was sufficient evidence of her possession with intent to deliver and intent to participate in a criminal combination.  The court reversed the case on jury charge error because the charge permitted an unauthorized EOCA conviction and remanded for a retrial without specifying an offense.
The State argues that remand for a retrial on EOCA is inappropriate; the evidence will never be sufficient to prove the nonexistent offense charged.  Because the evidence of possession with intent to deliver was sufficient, however, the court of appeals should have reformed the judgment to that offense and remanded for resentencing.
�


Ross, PD-1066-17/

Does a charging
instrument that tracks

the offense of disorderly
conduct by displaying a
firearm provide adequate
notice?

Did the COA conflate First
Amendment vagueness
with Sixth Amendment
notice requirements?

Is “alarm” inherently
vague?
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1. “Does an information that tracks the language of section 42.01(a)(8) provide a defendant sufficient notice that he displayed a firearm in a manner calculated to alarm?”

2.  “Did the court of appeals err by applying a First Amendment and Fourteenth Amendment rule to a Sixth Amendment complaint?”

3.  “Is the term ‘alarm’ within the context of section 42.01(a)(8) inherently vague?”

Ross was charged with disorderly conduct by displaying a firearm in public. The State’s information tracked the statutory language for Tex. Penal Code § 42.01(a)(8): intentionally or knowingly displaying a firearm in a public place in a manner calculated to alarm. It also specified the particular public place where Ross displayed the firearm. Ross moved to quash the information. He argued that, in an open-carry state, merely tracking the statutory language failed to provide sufficient Sixth Amendment notice of the specific conduct or acts the State would rely upon to show his manner of displaying the firearm was “calculated to alarm.” He asserted that the term “alarm” was vague. The trial court agreed and quashed the information.

The State appealed. The court of appeals affirmed the trial court’s decision to quash. It recognized that tracking the statutory language is ordinarily sufficient, but that more specificity is required when a term is so vague or indefinite as to deny the defendant effective notice of the acts he allegedly committed. Among the cases the court of appeals considered were First Amendment cases determining whether the word “alarm” renders a statute unconstitutionally vague because the standard for assessing when a violation of the statute had occurred could not be ascertained. The court noted that, because a person is entitled to openly display a firearm in public, he is entitled to notice of how his manner of display was calculated to alarm so that he can prepare a defense.

The State contends that “alarm” in this statute is not vague. The statute does not require any person to be alarmed but only that the defendant calculate to alarm others by his display of a firearm. In this context, “alarm” means causing fear that the defendant will discharge the weapon or threaten to discharge it. The State asserts that it need not allege what particular conduct Ross engaged in while displaying the firearm because that is an evidentiary matter. The State also argues that the court of appeals confused the First Amendment notice that the legislature owes the public so they may have fair notice of what conduct is prohibited by law and the Sixth Amendment notice the prosecution owes a defendant to know what he is being charged with. The court of appeals does not purport to find the statute unconstitutionally vague.  In any event, it is not unconstitutionally vague because the requirement that the defendant must calculate to alarm provides assurance that the statute will not be haphazardly applied.
�



Which law—state or
city—banning the
discharge of a firearm
applies when a city’s
ordinance was enacted
under the doctrine of
home-rule cities under
TEXAS PENAL CODE §
42.12(d)?

Musa-Valle-PD-1047-18

CHICKS WITH GUNS
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“Did the court of appeals err by failing to recognize municipalities’ authority, granted pursuant to the doctrine of home-rule cities and by Texas Penal Code § 42.12(d), to ban the discharge of firearms?”

2. “Did the lower court err by holding the San Antonio Ordinance should be construed as a strict liability crime?”

3. “Did the court of appeals misconstrue the doctrine of in pari materia by requiring that all elements in the provisions of law being compared must be identical?”

Musa-Valle allegedly discharged a firearm in San Antonio. He was charged under Tex. Penal Code § 42.12(a) (“Discharge of Firearm in Certain Municipalities”), a Class A misdemeanor. He filed a motion to set aside the information because San Antonio is a “home rule” city with a Class C ordinance that is in pari materia with section 42.12. The trial court agreed.

The State argued on appeal that the statutes are not in pari materia primarily because the ordinance is a strict liability offense while section 42.12 requires recklessness. The court of appeals reviewed nine factors, including that neighboring ordinances have mental states, and concluded that the omission of a mental state in the ordinance was deliberate. As a result, the elements of proof of the ordinance differed from section 42.12. Combined with its conclusion that the two laws have different purposes or objects, the court concluded that they are not in pari materia and so the State could proceed under section 42.12.

Musa-Valle makes three arguments. First, he argues that the court of appeals did not address his “home rule” argument. Even if the two laws are not in pari materia, the Texas Constitution permits cities like San Antonio to enact laws that may be curtailed by the Legislature only when the latter expresses its intent to do so. Section 42.12(d) expressly says it has no such intent. Second, he challenges the court’s conclusion that the ordinance is a strict liability offense. Although some neighboring ordinances have mental states and the one at issue does not, other ordinances in the same chapter plainly dispense with them as required under Tex. Penal Code § 6.02(b). The rule of lenity also supports the requirement of a mental state. Third, even if the ordinance is a strict liability offense, the absence of elemental identity is insufficient to hold the two laws are not in pari materia.



“Is a peace officer moonlighting as
private security ‘lawfully
discharging an official duty’ for
purposes of proving assault on a
public servant when acting under
TEX. ALco. BEv. CobpE § 101.07,
which dictates: ‘all peace officers
in the state” ‘shall enforce the
provisions of this code.”

Cuevas, PD-0314-18
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Presentation Notes
“Is a peace officer moonlighting as private security ‘lawfully discharging an official duty’ for purposes of proving assault on a public servant when acting under Tex. Alco. Bev. Code § 101.07, which dictates: ‘all peace officers in the state’ ‘shall enforce the provisions of this code.’”

Constable Clifford Bagwell and his brother Clinton were working security at a wedding reception venue. Cuevas and his brother were guests. Clinton twice confronted an intoxicated Cuevas to tell him he could not have alcohol outside the dance hall. Clinton sought his uniformed brother’s assistance, and the constable confronted Cuevas outside, poured out his beer, and refused to allow him to reenter the dance hall. A fight (that also involved Cuevas’s brother) ensued, and Cuevas began striking the constable while driving him to the ground. Constable Bagwell was injured and Cuevas was charged and convicted of assault on a peace officer, which requires proof that the officer was “lawfully discharging an official duty” at the time of the assault.  Tex. Penal Code § 22.01(b)(1).

On appeal, Cuevas argued that Constable Bagwell was acting in a private security capacity at the time of the offense and that he was not “discharging an official duty.” The court of appeals agreed and found there was no evidence he was investigating a crime, preventing its commission, or seeking to arrest Cuevas at the time of the assault. It observed that while Tex. Alco. Bev. Code § 28.10(b) prohibited the reception venue from allowing patrons to remove alcohol from the premises, there was no corresponding crime for a patron to possess alcohol outside the premises.

The State argues that Constable Bagwell was performing an official duty. A police officer’s “off-duty” status does not prevent him from discharging police authority. In a similar case, a plain-clothes officer moonlighting as an apartment security guard was held to be discharging official duties when breaking up a rowdy party.  The State also contends that Constable Bagwell had a statutory directive to enforce § 28.10(b) because Tex. Alco. Bev. Code § 101.07 provides that “All peace officers in the state. . .  shall enforce the provisions of [the Alcoholic Beverage] code.” Thus, as a matter of law, the constable was discharging his official duties.



Lopez, PD-1382-18
Senn, PD-1265-18
Rodriguez, PD-0013-15-19

Does the sexual assault
bigamy enhancement,
which raises the offense
to a first-degree felony if
the defendant was
prohibited from
marrying or purporting
to marry the victim or
living as if married to
the victim, require proof
of actual bigamy?
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Lopez, PD-1382-18
“Does the enhancement under Penal Code § 22.011(f) require the State to prove the defendant committed bigamy?”

Lopez was convicted of multiple sexual assaults of his step-daughter. The offenses were enhanced to first-degree felonies under Tex. Penal Code § 22.011(f), which applies “if the victim was a person whom the actor was prohibited from marrying or purporting to marry or with whom the actor was prohibited from living under the appearance of being married under Section 25.01 [the bigamy statute].”  The State argued Lopez was prohibited from marrying his victim because he was already married (to her mother). There was no evidence of actual bigamy (i.e., that Lopez married, claimed to marry, or lived as married with the victim).

Lopez appealed and argued that § 22.011(f) should be limited to instances of actual bigamy.  The court of appeals considered competing statements in the Court of Criminal Appeals’ opinions and orders and ultimately agreed with Lopez. It remanded the cases for a new punishment hearing on the unenhanced offenses.

The State argues that Arteaga v. State, 521 S.W.3d 329 (Tex. Crim. App. 2017), and Estes v. State, 546 S.W.3d 691 (Tex. Crim. App. 2018), have already answered this question.  Section 22.011(f) does not require proof of bigamy—only that he would be guilty of bigamy if he were to marry, claim to marry, or live as if married with the victim. The State contends that the literal, plain meaning of § 22.011(f) applies to Lopez as a married person.  In requiring the victim to be someone the defendant “was prohibited from marrying . . . under [the bigamy statute],” the enhancement doesn’t require him to marry the victim, just that the bigamy statute forbids it.  The State argues that the literal language of the statute may be broad but it is not absurd that the legislature would want to punish a defendant more harshly when either he or his victim is already married.

Senn, PD-1265-18

“The court of appeals erred in concluding that section 22.011(f) of the Texas Penal Code requires the State to prove commission of an actual bigamy offense to elevate Appellant’s punishment range for sexual assault to a first-degree felony offense.”

 2. “The court of appeals’ decision requiring the State to prove an actual bigamy offense under section 22.011(f) of the Texas Penal Code is contrary to Arteaga v. State, 521 S.W.3d 329 (Tex. Crim. App. 2017).”
 3. “The court of appeals erred in disregarding the clarification contained in footnote 9 of Arteaga merely because it was relegated to a footnote.”

Senn was convicted of sexually assaulting his biological daughter. The offense was enhanced to a first-degree felony under Tex. Penal Code § 22.011(f), which applies “if the victim was a person whom the actor was prohibited from marrying or purporting to marry or with whom the actor was prohibited from living under the appearance of being married under Section 25.01 [the bigamy statute].”

On appeal, Senn challenged, among other claims, the sufficiency of the evidence to trigger the enhancement and its constitutionality as applied to him. Shortly after the court of appeals affirmed his conviction, the Court of Criminal Appeals held in Arteaga v. State, 521 S.W.3d 329 (Tex. Crim. App. 2017), that the language “the actor was prohibited from” and “under Section 25.01” applied to each alternative in § 22.011(f)—i.e., “marrying” “purporting to marry,” and “living under the appearance of being married.” The court of appeals’ opinion in Senn—which had permitted any marriage prohibition, not just a prohibition under the bigamy statute— was vacated in an order that repeated the language of the Arteaga holding: “[t]he legislature intended for the State to prove facts constituting bigamy” to invoke the enhancement.

On remand, the en banc court of appeals interpreted this language to limit § 22.011(f) to instances of actual bigamy.  It rejected the State’s reliance on footnote 9 in Arteaga (which clarified that the State only had to prove facts that would constitute bigamy) because the Court of Criminal Appeals did not consider its footnotes to be binding precedent. One dissenting justice would have followed even footnotes, because they were from a higher court.
The State argues that the court of appeals has misinterpreted Arteaga and failed to read the opinion as a whole, including footnote 9. It contends that the State proved one of the scenarios that Arteaga held met the requirements of § 22.011(f): Senn would be guilty of bigamy if he were to marry, claim to marry, or live as if married with the victim because he was already married at the time of the sexual assault.

Rodriguez, PD-0013-18 through PD0015-18

“Did the court of appeals err in concluding that the enhanced penalty provision for sexual assault under Section 22.011(f) does not require proof of bigamous conduct and can be triggered solely by evidence that Petitioner was married at the time the offense was committed?”

Rodriguez was convicted of multiple sexual assaults against his biological daughter. The offenses were enhanced to first-degree felonies under Tex. Penal Code § 22.011(f), which applies “if the victim was a person whom the actor was prohibited from marrying or purporting to marry or with whom the actor was prohibited from living under the appearance of being married under Section 25.01 [the bigamy statute].”  The State argued Rodriguez was prohibited from marrying his victim because of his common law marriage to someone else. There was no evidence of actual bigamy (i.e., that Rodriguez married, claimed to marry, or lived as married with the victim).

Rodriguez appealed and argued that § 22.011(f) should be limited to instances of actual bigamy. The court of appeals held, in reliance on Estes v. State, 546 S.W.3d 691 (Tex. Crim. App. 2018), and a footnote in Arteaga v. State, 521 S.W.3d 329 (Tex. Crim. App. 2017), that the State was only required to prove facts showing that the bigamy statute would prohibit him from marrying his victim. The State made this showing by proving he was already married. The court of appeals affirmed the convictions.

Rodriguez argues the court of appeals’ decision conflicts with Arteaga’s stated holding that in order to invoke the enhancement, “[t]he legislature intended for the State to prove facts constituting bigamy.”  He notes that other courts of appeals have found this holding to be irreconcilable with footnote 9 and have not followed the footnote. He contends another court of appeals properly found Estes inapposite because Estes was an as-applied challenge to § 22.011(f), not a challenge to the sufficiency of the evidence to support the enhancement.  He argues that the statute’s ambiguity justifies consideration of extra-textual factors. In particular, he argues the court of appeals’ interpretation is at odds with the legislative history indicating the statute was directed at “those already identified as bigamists or polygamists, not those who merely had the opportunity to become that, theoretically.
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Art. 39.14(a)
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“While reviewing a violation of the Michael Morton Act, the Court of Appeals erred in its materiality analysis.”

At the punishment phase of trial, the State offered multiple pen packets and booking sheets to prove its enhancement allegations as well as extraneous offenses. Watkins objected that the State had not disclosed the exhibits in discovery, and the State, believing that it was not required to, agreed it had not. The trial court admitted the exhibits.

On appeal, Watkins argued that the admission of the exhibits violated Code of Criminal Procedure Article 39.14, which states in part that the State must disclose various items that “constitute or contain evidence material to any matter involved in the action.” The court of appeals ultimately found the exhibits were not material. It acknowledged that if it were “writing on a clean slate,” it would be inclined to include punishment phase trial exhibits within the meaning of “material to any matter involved in the action.” But it felt compelled to follow Court of Criminal Appeals precedent construing materiality under Article 39.14 to be the same as for a Brady v. Maryland claim, i.e., that there be “a reasonable probability that had the evidence been disclosed, the outcome of the trial would have been different.” Although the precedent pre-dated the Morton Act amendments to Art. 39.14, the amendments did not change the text of that phrase. Applying the controlling standard, the court of appeals observed that Watkins had pleaded true to the enhancement paragraphs and had notice that the State intended to prove the other extraneous convictions through the State’s Article 37.07 notice. The court concluded that even if the exhibits had been produced, there was no reasonable probability that the outcome of the punishment hearing would have been different.  

Watkins argues the court of appeals applied the wrong standard for materiality. He contends that the Morton Act’s significant alterations to the discovery statute made the pre-Morton materiality standard inapplicable. Before the Morton Act eliminated it, defendants were required to show good cause. As a result, cases frequently stated that discovery violations were reversible error only if the omitted evidence created a reasonable doubt that did not otherwise exist. Watkins contends that the similarity between this standard and Brady materiality resulted in the two being “inextricably    intertwined.” Watkins also argues that the Morton Act’s intent to broaden discovery cannot be accomplished without retreating from the prior understanding of materiality. Many of the items that the Morton Act added to what the State must disclose do not fit the old definition of materiality, and yet their addition is an express intent that they be turned over. Watkins also argues that because Brady and the Morton Act are not similar in scope, they should not employ the same definition of materiality. He adds that the court of appeals was not constrained to follow the Court of Criminal Appeals decision since the Legislature has since amended the statute through the Morton Act. He contends the court of appeals should have adopted a construction of the statute that effectuated the Legislature’s intended changes.
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Fraser, PD-0/711-17/

“Can the felonies of reckless or criminally
negligent or reckless or
criminally negligent

underlie a felony-murder conviction when the
act underlying the felony and the act clearly
dangerous to human life are one and the same?”


Presenter
Presentation Notes
“Can the felonies of reckless or criminally negligent injury to a child or reckless or criminally negligent child endangerment underlie a felony-murder conviction when the act underlying the felony and the act clearly dangerous to human life are one and the same?”

Fraser murdered a child in her in-home daycare by administering the child a lethal dose of Benadryl. She was convicted of felony-murder with the underlying felony being either injury to a child or child endangerment.

The court of appeals reversed, holding that the felony-murder conviction was not authorized by the law. The act alleged in support of felony murder—an act clearly dangerous to human life—was subsumed by the underlying felonies. And reckless or criminally negligent injury to a child and child endangerment are lessers of manslaughter. Although “intentional” in injury to a child is not a lesser of manslaughter, the jury charge did not limit the jury’s consideration to “intentional” conduct. Therefore, according to the court, the lessers allowed the State to bootstrap what would otherwise be a manslaughter offense into felony-murder when manslaughter is excluded as a qualifying felony under the felony-murder rule.

The State contends that precedent from the Court of Criminal Appeals, as other courts of appeals have recognized, support the conclusion that reckless or criminally negligent injury to a child or reckless or criminally negligent child endangerment can underlie a felony-murder conviction even when the act underlying the felony and the act clearly dangerous to human life are the same. For example, Contreras v. State, 312 S.W.3d 566 (Tex. Crim. App. 2010), holds that injury to a child, with its four culpable mental states, can qualify as an underlying felony. The State argues that the court of appeals wrongly implied that felony-murder is a result-oriented offense because it plainly dispenses with a culpable mental state. Finally, the State asserts that, little of the former merger doctrine still exists but that even if it does, it does not support the conclusion that the underlying felonies here were subsumed.



Was the evidence
sufficient to prove that
Stahmann tampered
with a pill bottle by

when he
threw it over a fence
after an accident and
bystanders reported

the throwing and the GET OFF MY SHELF

bottle's location to
police? Stahmann, PD-0556-18



Presenter
Presentation Notes
“Where this Court and other appellate courts have found evidence sufficient to support an ‘alteration’ under the tampering statute when an item’s physical or geographical location is changed, did Stahmann err in failing to uphold Appellant’s tampering conviction based on his undisputed ‘alteration’ of the pill bottle’s location by throwing it away from himself and the crash site, over a fence, and into a patch of shrubbery?”

2. “Where the ‘dispositive inquiry is whether law enforcement noticed the object before the defendant tried to hide it and maintained visual contact’ of the object, and law enforcement only learned of the existence and location of the evidence from a third-party witness well after Appellant threw it away, did Appellant ‘conceal’ the pill bottle?”

Stahmann was involved in a high-speed collision with an SUV. Stahmann got out of his vehicle, and two bystanders saw him throw what looked like a prescription bottle over a nearby chain or wire fence. It landed on top of some grass and was still visible to the bystanders. Stahmann asked them why they were near the fence and what they were looking for. When police arrived, the bystanders told them they had seen Stahmann throw something over the fence and pointed out the bottle. Officers retrieved it and saw it was labeled with someone else’s name and contained pills that are illegal to possess without a prescription. Stahmann was charged with tampering with physical evidence by altering, destroying, or concealing the pill bottle. The jury found him guilty.

On appeal Stahmann argued the evidence was insufficient. The State conceded there was no evidence he had destroyed the bottle but maintained the evidence was sufficient under the other alleged manner and means—altered or concealed.  
The court of appeals found there was no evidence Stahmann had altered or concealed the bottle. It held, based on common dictionary definitions, that “alter” means to change, make different, or modify and that “conceal” means to hide, remove from sight or notice, or keep from discovery or observation. The court of appeals found no evidence anything about the bottle had changed. It also held that because the bottle “remained in full sight of bystanders” the entire time, it was not actually hidden, removed from sight, or kept from discovery, despite evidence that Stahmann may have intended this to occur.  The court of appeals reformed the judgment to attempted tampering.

The State argues, as it did in a motion for rehearing, that changing the location of evidence suffices to “alter” it. The State cites other appellate decisions involving defendants who were ultimately unsuccessful at concealing evidence. It suggests that failure to conceal the item from law enforcement (rather than a bystander or accomplice) is what matters. It draws this conclusion in part from multiple references to investigation in other parts of the statute. For example, Tex. Penal Code § 37.09(a)(1) requires that a person conceal the item “knowing that an investigation or official proceeding is pending or in progress” and intending to impair its availability “in the investigation or official proceeding.”).  The State contends that by throwing the pill bottle away from the accident scene, Stahmann made it unnoticeable to law enforcement for a brief time until the bystanders pointed it out, and this is sufficient to constitute concealing evidence.   



Curry-PD-0577-18

1. “The court of appeals erred in determining that the
evidence was sufficient to support Appellant’s
conviction for accident involving injury—failure to stop
and render aid.”

2.-“The court of appeals erred in affirming the trial
court’s refusal to give jury instruction on mistake of
fact.”


Presenter
Presentation Notes
“The court of appeals erred in determining that the evidence was sufficient to support Appellant’s conviction for accident involving injury–failure to stop and render aid.”

 2.  “The court of appeals erred in affirming the trial court’s refusal to give jury instruction on mistake of fact.”
 
Curry was driving his truck when he hit a cyclist. He did not stop at the scene. The cyclist ultimately died as a result of the collision. The truck’s front passenger headlight was broken and the quarter panel was damaged. Curry was charged with “accident involving personal injury or death” under Tex. Transp. Code § 550.021. At trial, the parties disagreed over what Curry knew when he left the scene. The State’s accident reconstruction experts testified that Curry was aware that a collision occurred because the debris path showed he had swerved. Curry testified that he knew his truck had collided with something because his passenger-side headlight “suddenly burst” but “believed that somebody either threw something, or hit something, or something hit my truck, or that it was just something that had just came up off the road.” He did not stop because he feared the possibility of an altercation with someone. Curry’s girlfriend, who had been following Curry that night in a separate vehicle, testified she did not see Curry strike a cyclist and she thought someone had thrown a bottle at the truck from a nearby parking lot. Curry’s accident reconstruction expert testified that, because the truck sustained so little damage, a reasonable person could have believed that it struck something other than a person or another vehicle. At the jury charge conference, the trial court denied Curry’s request for an instruction on mistake of fact. He was convicted.

On appeal, Curry argued the evidence was insufficient to prove he knew he had been in an accident that involved injury to a person. The court of appeals held that § 550.021 no longer requires that the defendant know a person has been injured. An amendment to the statute expanded its reach to accidents “reasonably likely to cause injury or death.” It also expressly requires drivers to “immediately determine whether a person is involved in the accident.” Tex. Transp. Code §  550.021(a)(3). Consequently, the State did not have to prove Curry knew when he left the scene that a person had been injured; it was enough that Curry was aware that a collision of some kind occurred. The court of appeals also rejected his argument that the jury should have been instructed on mistake of fact. Under Celis v. State, 416 S.W.3d 419 (Tex. Crim. App. 2013), a mistake-of-fact defense is required only if it would negate the mental state required for the offense. Here, Curry’s mistaken belief that he had not struck a person does not negate the required culpable mental state that he knew that he had been in an accident.

Curry contends the evidence is insufficient to prove he was in an accident. He argues that the court of appeals erroneously relied on a dictionary definition of “accident” that the jury did not have. He also argues that the cases the court of appeals cited are distinguishable and do not establish that his collision constituted an “accident.” As to the mistake-of-fact instruction, Curry argues that the court of appeals mischaracterized his mistake. It is not that he mistakenly believed he had not struck a person; instead, he mistakenly believed he had not been in an accident in the first place.  The evidence showed he thought that he had been struck by a beer bottle. Because this negates the mental state required by § 550.023, he argues he was entitled to a mistake-of-fact instruction.



Metcalf, PD-1246-18

Was the evidence sufficient to support Metcalf’s
guilt as a party for the sexual assault of her
daughter by the step-father when her daughter
reported the abuse and Metcalf turned a blind
eye during future assaults and allowed the step-
father to return home after expelling him upon
catching him in the act?


Presenter
Presentation Notes
“Whether the court of appeals erred by striking down the verdict of the jury that Metcalf was guilty as a party to the sexual assault of her daughter,

1.   by conflating the requirements of subsections 7.02(a)(2) and 7.02(a)(3) of the Texas Penal Code and thus imposing upon the State an additional evidentiary burden than that required by subsection 7.02(a)(3); and
2.   by failing to evaluate the cumulative and combined weight of the evidence incriminating Metcalf, choosing instead to view each piece of evidence in isolation and finding it insufficient standing alone to support the jury’s verdict.”

Metcalf’s husband Allen repeatedly sexually assaulted her daughter over a period of years. For her conduct as a party, Metcalf was indicted for a single count of sexual assault by anal intercourse. Metcalf’s daughter testified that she told Metcalf her step-dad was a monster and doing bad things. She said she had called out to her mother and that Metcalf would approach and ask, “What’s going on?” but then leave when her husband said she had a nightmare. One day Metcalf’s daughter reported Allen had tried to pull down her shorts. Metcalf told police she did not believe Allen that it wasn’t sexual and made him leave, but she later allowed him to return home after she had given her daughter a whistle and a cell phone in case he tried to touch her again. Allen continued the assaults, however, until one day Metcalf walked in and saw Allen sexually molesting her daughter. Metcalf briefly kicked him out of the house but then begged her daughter to allow him back for her siblings’ sake. In its general verdict, the jury convicted Metcalf as a party either under a traditional accomplice theory (Penal Code § 7.02(a)(2)—by soliciting, encouraging, directing, aid, or attempting to aid her husband to sexually assault her daughter)—or a legal-duty theory (§ 7.02(a)(3)—by acting with intent to promote or assist the sexual assault, having a duty to prevent it, and failing to make a reasonable effort to do so).

On appeal, the court of appeals found the evidence insufficient to prove Metcalf intended to promote or assist in the commission of the sexual assault. It acknowledged that under a legal-duty theory, the State did not need to prove Metcalf solicited, encouraged, directed, aided, or attempted to aid the sexual assault. But it held that the State had to prove she acted with intent to promote or assist the act of anal intercourse alleged by showing that “at the time of the offense, the parties were acting together, each doing some part of the execution of the common purpose.”  

The State contends this conflates the two theories of party liability. Nothing in the legal-duty theory requires proof that the parties were acting together or executing a common purpose. The cases the court of appeals relies on are traditional accomplice liability cases under § 7.02(a)(2). The State also argues that the court of appeals failed to view the evidence in the aggregate. It argues that the evidence as a whole supports the inference that Metcalf knew Allen was sexually assaulting her daughter and that the jury could infer from Metcalf’s conduct in failing to prevent the assaults that it was her conscious objective and desire to cater to Allen’s wishes rather than keep her daughter safe.
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Jones, PD-0552-18

|s Texas’
“Revenge Porn’
statute
constitutional,
or does it
violate the First
Amendment?

’



Presenter
Presentation Notes
“Is Tex. Penal Code § 21.16(b) a content-based restriction on speech that is subject to strict scrutiny?”

2. “May a court of appeals find a statute unconstitutional based on a manner and means that was not charged?”

3. “Is Tex. Penal Code § 21.16(b) facially constitutional?”

Jones was charged with one violation of section 21.16(b) of the Texas Penal Code, commonly referred to as the “revenge porn” statute. As limited by the charging instrument, he was charged with disclosing visual material he obtained under circumstances in which the depicted person would have a reasonable expectation of privacy and revealing the identity of the depicted person through accompanying or subsequent information he provided. The trial court denied his pretrial application for writ of habeas corpus, which alleged the statute violates the First Amendment by failing strict scrutiny and overbreadth analysis.

The court of appeals reversed. It held that section 21.16(b) is a content-based restriction on speech because it “penalizes only a subset of disclosed images” and thus concluded that it must satisfy strict scrutiny, which is both the highest constitutional burden and one placed on the State to prove.  The court held that section 21.16(b) failed strict scrutiny because it permitted conviction of a hypothetical defendant who had no reason to know the circumstances surrounding the visual material’s creation. In an abundance of caution, it also held that the statute prohibited a substantial amount of protected speech compared to its legitimate sweep.

The State argues that the speech at issue deserves intermediate scrutiny, at best.  First, reference to the content of speech does not inevitably trigger strict scrutiny; the inherent value of the speech—including whether it is on a public or private matter—plays a role in choosing the appropriate standard. Second, the Court of Criminal Appeals in Ex parte Thompson, 442 S.W.3d 325 (Tex. Crim. App. 2014), set out a framework for applying intermediate scrutiny to a photography statute by focusing on the secondary effects of lack of consent and violation of privacy; the Legislature followed this framework to the letter when it enacted Section 21.16(b).

The State also argues that the lower court’s focus on the potential for a “problematic” application to a hypothetical defendant means that it did not rule on the ultimate issue presented to it—whether the offense Jones was accused of committing is facially unconstitutional. Had it properly confined its analysis to the offense as limited by the charging instrument, it would have found that it satisfies even strict scrutiny and is not overbroad.
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Is the summoning
witness/mileage fee
constitutional since it is
not directed to a criminal
, »~= Justice purpose, orisita
Sl recoupment cost?



Presenter
Presentation Notes
APPELLANT’S
“Whether the First Court of Appeals erred when it misinterpreted Peraza v. State, 467 S.W.3d 508 (Tex. Crim. App. 2015) and failed to apply Salinas v. State, 523 S.W.3d 103 (Tex. Crim. App. 2017) in determining that the summoning witness/mileage fee under Texas Code of Criminal Procedure Article 102.011 was not facially unconstitutional because the court cost was for a direct expense incurred by the State even though the statute does not direct the funds collected to be used for a legitimate criminal justice purpose?”

STATE’S
“This Court should overrule Carson, Peraza, and Salinas and return to the original understanding of Article II Section I of the Texas Constitution, which did not impose limitations on the Legislature’s ability to assess court costs.”

In assessing court costs, the trial court ordered Allen to pay $200 for “summoning witness/mileage.” On appeal, he claimed that fee assessed under Tex. Code Crim. Proc. art. 102.011 is unconstitutional because it constitutes a tax in violation of separation of powers.

The court of appeals upheld the fee. It recognized that Peraza v. State authorizes two distinct types of costs: (1) costs to reimburse for expenses incurred in connection with the prosecution, and (2) costs to off-set future criminal justice expenses. 467 S.W.3d 508 (Tex. Crim. App. 2015). The court also observed that Salinas v. State addressed the future-use costs category and held that such costs, to be valid, must be used for legitimate criminal justice purposes. 523 S.W.3d 103 (Tex. Crim. App. 2017). In this case, the fee is intended to recoup criminal justice expenses incurred during the prosecution of the defendant. The controlling rationale is the source of the fee, not how it will be spent in the future. So the fact it may later be deposited in the State’s general revenue fund is irrelevant. The failure to segregate the money into a separate account does not make courts tax gatherers when the fee is tied to past expenses.

Justice Jennings dissented. He claimed that Peraza did not create the dichotomy the majority relies on. Peraza, and later Salinas, focused on the subsequent expenditure for legitimate criminal justice purposes.

APPELLANT
Echoing Justice Jennings’ complaints, Allen argues that the court of appeals’ decision conflicts with Peraza and Salinas. Constitutionality depends on whether the cost is statutorily directed to be expended for criminal justice purposes, regardless of whether it is directly related to the defendant’s trial or is a recoupment cost.  The infirmity is the statute’s failure to direct the funds to be used for something that serves a criminal justice purpose. As a result, they are deposited in the general revenue fund, and this is what makes the fee unconstitutional.

STATE
The State contends that the Court of Criminal Appeals has not, in either Ex parte Carson, 159 S.W.2d 126 (Tex. Crim. App. 1942), Peraza, or Salinas, considered whether its understanding of separation of powers is consistent with the original meaning of the Texas Constitution. The Court, instead, wrongly relied on cases from other states interpreting their constitutions, particularly Oklahoma. The State contends that the original court-cost scheme when Texas’ Constitution was adopted and in place until 1965 required defendants to pay virtually all costs, and much of the recoupment went into the State’s general revenue fund. In fact, prosecutors were paid per prosecution from the costs assessed to the defendant. The Court’s focus on where the costs are directed is inconsistent with the original understanding.
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Miranda, PD-1340-18

Is the corpus delicti rule, which
requires evidence corroborating a
confession, satisfied by evidence
establishing a "criminal episode”
involving offenses connected or
constituting a scheme or plan or the
repeated commission of the same
offense?


Presenter
Presentation Notes
“In holding the evidence legally insufficient to support two of Miranda’s convictions, the Court of Appeals did not follow this Court’s case of Miller v. State, 457 S.W.3d 919 (Tex. Crim. App. 2015), concerning the closely-related crimes exception to the corpus delicti rule, improperly holding that the exception did not apply because the temporal relationship of one year between the offenses was too long, even though they were all part of a single criminal episode, and there were multiple victims that were not aware of each other.”

Miranda was convicted of improper relationship between student and educator, sexual assault of a child, and sexual performance of a child for abusing three gymnastics students he coached. At trial, Miranda’s confessions to the conduct underlying the offenses were admitted into evidence. Only one of the victims testified at trial.

On appeal, Miranda claimed that the evidence was insufficient to support the offenses involving the victims who did not testify. Relying on the corpus delicti rule, Miranda alleged that his confessions were not sufficiently corroborated. In response, the State argued that the testimony of the one victim could be used to corroborate his confessions involving the others. In Miller v. State, 457 S.W.3d 919 (Tex. Crim. App. 2015), the State pointed out, the Court of Criminal Appeals recognized a closely-related crimes exception when the “temporal relationship between the offenses is sufficiently proximate.”  The court of appeals determined that Miller was distinguishable, however. Miller, it observed, involved the sexual abuse of a single victim for about a month. Here, there were three victims during a year. The court held that the temporal connection was not “sufficiently close.”

The State argues that the court of appeals’ opinion violates Miller. Miranda’s crimes against three female 16-year-old gymnastics students satisfies the definition of “criminal episode;” thus, they were prosecuted in the same criminal action. “Criminal episode,” the State notes, includes offenses that are connected or constitute a scheme or plan or involve the repeated commission of the same or similar offenses.  Tex. Penal Code § 3.01. So, “[e]stablishing the corpus delicti of one offense within this single criminal episode should satisfy the closely-related-crime exception to the corpus- delicti rule, as that is what appears to have been envisioned by this Court in Miller.”
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